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Clarification Note #3 

GSA internal reference: 219939 

 

Procurement procedure: GSA/OP/21/15 – EGNOS V3 Site Surveys  

 

Question #11: The provision I.3.4 of the Draft Contract states that in addition to the maximum total 

price specified in each specific contract, no travel, subsistence nor accommodation expenses shall 

be reimbursed.  Yet Article II.16 provides for reimbursable expenses.  

 

Please can GSA advise whether travel, subsistence or accommodation expenses will be reimbursed?  

This is quite a critical point given the nature of the tender. 

 

Answer:   The provisions of the Special Conditions shall take precedence over those of the General 

Conditions. As provided in the Annex I.8 to the Tender Specifications, all the expenses necessary to 

perform the contract (including travel, subsistence and accommodation expenses) shall be included 

in the prices provided in the Model Financial Offer. Therefore, the price of the specific contracts 

(calculated on the prices of the Model Financial Offer) shall already cover all expenses and no other 

reimbursement of expenses are neither foreseen nor will be made to the Contractor.  

 

 

Question #12: There is a typographical error in the Article I.4.2. of the Draft Contract. Is the 

reference to Force Majeure events meant to read Article II.11? 

 

Answer: Yes, reference to Force Majeure shall read Article II.11. 

 

Question #13: Article I.5.2 of the Draft Contract specifies that invoices shall be submitted by the 

Contractor thirty (30) days after the expiry of the quarter. Could the GSA advise about the 

consequences would the Contractor misses this deadline?  For example if there are any problems 

with obtaining the deliverable acceptance sheet signed by both parties, this could potentially have 

a knock-on effect on the Contractor submitting the invoice to GSA on time.  Will GSA still process 

the invoice if submitted after 30 days?   

 

Answer: The GSA will respect the legal commitment and pay for services provided and accepted and 

thus process the invoice even in the cases where they may reach the GSA with delay provided the 

requirements, such as countersigned deliverable acceptance sheets, are fulfilled. However, the 

Contractor shall endeavour to respect the due date as much as possible.   

 

Question #14: Could the GSA provide further details regarding the contractor performing the 

Framework Contract to the “highest professional standards” (Article II.1.1 of the Draft Contract). 

We would expect a clause of this nature to impose a “reasonable standard expected of a reputable 

contractor experienced in the types of work required to be carried out”.  If the Contractor is to work 

to the “highest professional standards”, please clarify the details on the benchmark that is required 

to attain. 
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Answer: Highest professional standards shall be understood as the Contractor using state-of-the-art 

processes in order to perform the services and fulfilling its ethical and legal duty to exercise the tasks 

assigned with the level of care, diligence and skills pertinent to the best practice established.   

 

Question #15: Could the GSA provide further information regarding any compensation that GSA may 

be entitled to claim if any obligations are not performed in accordance with Article II.1.9 of the Draft 

Contract. How will GSA calculate any compensation it believes it is due from the Contractor?   

 

Answer: The compensation shall be defined depending on the particular case it refers to up to the 

limits defined in Article II.3.  

 

Question #16: The Article II.1.9 of the Draft Contract states that GSA can reduce / recover payments 

in proportion to the scale of unperformed obligations but is there a specific calculation and if there 

is any mechanism for the Contractor to dispute the same? 

 

Answer: The reduction/recovery of payment foreseen in Article II.1.9 are linked to the 

underperformance of the Contractor of the services to be rendered. No specific mechanism is defined 

for the Contractor to dispute the same against the GSA, the resolution of disputes as arranged in 

Article I.8 shall apply. 

 

Question #17: The Article II.3.4 of the Draft Contract states that the Contractor shall indemnify and 

hold the “Union” harmless. Please could the GSA clarify the meaning of the term the “Union”? 

 

Answer: The “Union” refers to the European Union. 

 

Question #18: Could the GSA provide further clarification on the meaning of the “d” symbol used in 

the formula in Article II.12 of the Draft Contract?   

 

Answer: As explained in Article II.12, d refers to the duration of the period foreseen for execution of 

Contractor’s obligations defined in the specific contract.  

 

Question #19: Could the GSA confirm that the Contractor does not require to provide a performance 

guarantee under Article II.15.5 of the Draft Contract. 

 

Answer: No performance guarantees shall be required. 

 

Question #20: Could the GSA advise if the Contractor shall be entitled to dispute any recovery 

charges. Article II.17 of the Draft Contract states that the Contractor shall be required to pay interest 

on late payments but is there a mechanism to dispute the charges and are the interest charged 

during said disputes?  

 

Answer: See the reply to question 16. 

 

Clarification #21: It is hereby underlined that by submitting its tender the tenderer confirms the 

acceptance of the conditions set in the tender specifications and the framework contract and its 

annexes; non-compliance with this requirement may lead to rejection of the tender.  
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